



NetControl2 User Manual



Table of Contents

1	Ove 1.1	rview and general handling The User Interface	
	1.2	Toolbar	7
2	Devi	ice list window	8
	2.1	Scanning for devices	9
		2.1.1 UDP Devices	10
	2.2	Device menu	11
3	Devi	ice manager window	12
	3.1	MAIN Tab	12
	3.2	GAIN/DELAY Tab	13
	3.3	IIR Tab	14
	3.4	X-Over Tab	15
	3.5	LIMITER-Tab	16
	3.6	Device-View PRESETS Tab	17
		3.6.1 Managing several presets on one device	
		3.6.2 Saving presets to a local file	18
	3.7	SETTINGS Tab	19
		3.7.1 Working with UDP-Groups	19
4	Wor	king with Systems	20
	4.1	Working with groups	21
		4.1.1 Load / Store systems to a local file	22
		4.1.2 Virtual systems	23
5	Sup	plementary tools	
	5.1	The Meter-bridge view	24
	5.2	Auto renamer	24
	5.3	User mode	25
	5.4	Manufacturer settings	25

Editor: Leonid Förster Version: 2.10 EN Date: 9.Dec ´15 Page : 3



1 Overview and general handling

NetControl is the Accuton software to manage the configuration off all Accuton audio DSPs. The connection between the software and the devices is based on the standard Ethernet network.

The software offers two user modes. The user mode is defined during the start-up sequence.

User Mode
User Mode
○ <u>U</u> ser ● <u>M</u> anufacturer
Debug Mode
OK Cancel

The manufacturer mode is dedicated for the low level adjustment of the audio settings and is password protected.

The user mode can be changed within the user interface as well. The menu command "Tools \rightarrow User Mode" opens the appropriate dialogue.



Each change of the user mode requires a restart of the software!

Editor:Leonid FörsterVersion:2.10 ENDate:9.Dec ´15Page :4



1.1 The User Interface

NetControl organizes the information about the devices and about the complete device network in four main sub-windows. The commands in the menu and the toolbar provide the functionality to work with the devices and with the network. A right-click on specific regions within the user interface ore on specific entries offers additional dedicated functionality within a pup-up menu. Devices can be reorganized just by drag-and-drop within a window or between different windows.



- Device list window: A list of all devices which were found in the network is shown here.
- Group list window: An overview about the entire system where devices are grouped according to the users preferences.
- Device manager window: This section shows all parameters for the currently selected device and allows modifying them. Storing and loading device-presets is also done from within this window.
- Group manager window: Group parametrization is displayed and manipulated within this window. The handling of the controls is the same as in the device manager window.



1.2 Menu

The NetCotnrol menu offers the following commands:

File	Load System (toolbar icon:): Load system from a local file
	 Store System (toolbar icon:): Save system to a local file Devices
	 Devices Store Preset to File: The currently active parametrization of a device is stored to a local file. Load Preset from File: Loads parameters from a local preset file and sends them to the device. This overwrites the currently active parameterization. Exit (toolbar icon:): Exits NetControl
System	 Clear system: Clears the current system Edit System Shortcuts: Dialogue for configuration of the system shortcuts. Load System 1-8: A quick way to load specified system files from a local file.
Tools	 Show Device List: A dialogue which gives an overview over the connected devices and their IP-addresses. Updater: The dialogue allows updating the preset and speaker library and the firmware of a device. Library Info: Displays a list of device types that are currently available. Edit Library: Allows editing the preset library and the speaker library content. Auto Renamer: Opens the auto renamer dialoge User Settings: Dialogue with general user settings User Mode: Allows to toggle between different user modes
Admin	 Encrypt: Opens the Encrypt dialogue Settings: Opens the dialogue for the manufacturer settings



• All: offers a rich functionality to organize all visible windows within the main window.
 Dock All: all windows are docked to the specified edge of the main window (left / top / right / bottom). Float All: all windows are floating within the main window. Auto-Hide All: all windows are hidden into tabs on the specified edge of the main window (left / top / right / bottom). Clicking on one of the tabs or hoovering the mouse over the desired tab shows the specific window. Tabify and Dock All: all windows are docked to the specified edge of the main window (left / top / right / bottom). Clicking on the tabs determines which window is visible. Tabify and Float All: all windows are shown within one single sub window. Clicking on the tabs determines which window is visible. Close All: Closes all displayed windows. DeviceList: Shows or closes the 'Device List' sub window. Three different display types can be chosen: Dock (left / top / right / bottom) – Float – Auto-Hide (left / top / right / bottom) GroupList: Shows or closes the 'Group List' sub window. Three different display types can be chosen: Dock (left / top / right / bottom) – Float – Auto-Hide (left / top / right / bottom) DevManager: Shows or closes the 'Device Manager' sub window. Three different display types can be chosen: Dock (left / top / right / bottom) – Float – Auto-Hide (left / top / right / bottom) GroupManager: Shows or closes the 'Group Manager' sub window. Three different display types can be chosen: Dock (left / top / right / bottom) – Float – Auto-Hide (left / top / right / bottom) GroupManager: Shows or closes the 'Group Manager' sub window. Three different display types can be chosen: Dock (left / top / right / bottom) – Float – Auto-Hide (left / top / right / bottom) GroupManager: Shows or closes the 'Group Manager' sub window. Three different display types can be chosen: Dock (left / top / right / bottom) – Float – Auto-Hide (left / top / right / bottom) Layouts

Editor:Leonid FörsterVersion:2.10 ENDate:9.Dec '15Page :7

NetControl2 User Manual



1.3 Toolbar

The toolbar provides a quick access to the most frequently used functions summarized in the following table:

	Load system from file		Organize the sub windows according to the default layout
	Store system to file	8 •	Load system 1 8 from file
	Receive config from network		Mute all outputs, all device inputs and group inputs remain unchanged
	Scan network for devices		Unmute all outputs, all device inputs and group inputs remain unchanged
	Send config to network	?	Store device parameters
田田	Show the meter bridge	R	Exit NetControl



2 Device list window

Connections to attached devices are managed in this window. A list gives an overview over all devices you are currently working with.



For each device in the network tree a green dot left to the device name indicates that NetControl is currently connected to the device. A red dot indicates that the device is currently not connected. The indicator is yellow while the connection is ongoing.

Left click on a device in order to select it. The parameters for the selected device are shown in the "device manager" window (see section 3).

A right click on "Interfaces" shows four options:



Scan Network	Opens the dialogue for the network scan.	
Remove All	Removes all devices from the tree.	
Disconnect All	Close connection to all devices listed in the tree.	
Reconnect All	Reconnects to all devices listed in the tree.	



2.1 Scanning for devices

After a device has been physically connected to the Ethernet NetControl can scan for it and add it to the list of managed devices. This is done using the "Scan network" dialogue (right click on

"Interfaces" in the "Device List" window and choose "Scan Network" or on the icon in the toolbar):



- The "Connectors" field shows a list of all available network adapters, e.g. the IP-address of the computer that is currently running the NetControl software.
- On the right an IP-address range has to be defined. NetControl will search for attached devices within this IP-address range. The "Copy" button copies the start-IP address into the stop-IP field in order to simplify the search within one domain.
- The "Start Scanning" button initiates the scan and the progress bar on the bottom indicates the progress.
- "Quick UDP Scan" button: This scan is based on the UDP protocol instead of the TSP protocol. This scan type simply checks the entire accessible IP-range but the response of the devices is not guaranteed.
- All found devices are listed in the main part of the window. The user can identify the devices according to their name, IP-address or the serial number.
- The "Add Devices" button appears when at least one device is found. The new devices are added to NetControl when pressing this button. Only marked devices are added when "Add only selected" option has been chosen. NetControl automatically establishes a connection to the new devices.
- The "UDP Device" button opens the "Device list" dialogue described in the next section.

Editor:	Leonid Förster
Version:	2.10 EN
Date:	9.Dec ´15
Page :	10



2.1.1 UDP Devices

This dialogue can either be started by the menu command "Tools \rightarrow UDP devices" or from within the scanning dialogue described above. The dialogue shows all devices in the network responding to the scan based on the UDP-protocol (instead of the TSP-protocol).



Use the "Auto-IP" button in order to automatically redefine the IP-addresses of connected devices. If several devices are selected successive IP-addresses will be assigned starting from the address specified in the dialogue.



Press the "Refresh" button in order to update the information about the connected devices.

The "Update" button offers a quick way to update the firmware of several devices in one run. A file-dialogue is opened which asks to select the appropriate firmware file.

Editor: Leonid Förster Version: 2.10 EN Date: 9.Dec ´15 Page : 11



2.2 Device menu

A right click on a device name shows a popup menu. The amount of provided functions depends on the device type and on the current software mode. Use the menu command "Tools \rightarrow User Mode" in order to switch between user mode and manufacturer mode if required.

Edit	Shows the following dialogue with general information about the device (Same as a double click on a device entry): For the device settings here you can change the device name DeviceTypeName DM0025-EQ_NMI Device name DM0025-EQ_NMI Device name DM0025-EQ_NMI Serial DEVICE name can be changed for the sake of a quick identification within the system. This name must be unique within one system. The name of a device is also important
	during the merging process when working with groups. Additionally to this information the firmware version of the device can be retrieved directly from the device.
Remove device	Removes the selected device from the device list.
Store to Preset	The currently active parametrization of a device is stored to a local file.
Load from Preset	Loads device parameters from a local preset file and sends them to the device. This overwrites the currently active parameterization
Clear Group Param	
Repush	
Reload	Reloads parameters from the device into the software e.g. after a preset library update
Set Device Type	Opens a window which allows changing the type of the device. This is only important for initial factory setting (Accuton).
Disconnect	Closes the connection to the selected device.
Update Firmware	Opens a dialog for firmware update.



3 Device manager window

This is the main window to configure the exact parametrization of the selected device. The different types of parameters are organized on several views. Directly click on the signal-flow blocks within the MAIN-tab or alternatively on the corresponding tabs in order to access the details.

3.1 MAIN Tab

The main tab view provides a brief overview over the device. It shows In- and Out levels, channel mutes, the selected preset, status signals and a block diagram of the device processing chain.



- In order to edit the device parameters just click on the appropriate block. The display will switch to the associated view providing the functionality. The view can also be activated directly by clicking the associated parameter tab.
- On the lower left side the input type (analogue / digital) can be defined.
- The input channels can be linked. Every parameter change will now equally affect all linked channels.
- On the lower right side information for the amplifier is displayed.
- The complete parametrization of the device can be stored to presets both on the device and in a local file. It is then possible to quickly change between different presets. More details are provided in the "Presets-Tab" section below.
- Pressing the signaling button activates the LED-indicator on the device interface and simplifies to physically locate it within a network.

NetControl2 User Manual



3.2 GAIN/DELAY Tab



- The "IN" section on the left allows modifying the device's input gain and delay. It also shows the combined delay and gain which takes into account group settings (see section 4).
- Analogously the "OUT" section on the right controls the output gain and delay. It is generally available in manufacturer mode only. For EQ devices the output section is also available in the user mode.
- The copy/paste functionality provides a quick way to transfer the settings of one channel to another one and also to a different device.

Editor:Leonid FörsterVersion:2.10 ENDate:9.Dec '15Page :14

NetControl2 User Manual



3.3 IIR Tab



- There is one sub-tab for each input and for each output channel of the device. For each channel there are 10 IIR filter bands available. Each band is configured by selecting the filter type and by parametrizing it.
- The sub-tabs for the OUT channels are generally only available in the manufacturer mode. For this reason they are also not available in the group settings. Only for EQ-devices output channels can also be controlled from within the user mode.

Editor:	Leonid Förster
Version:	2.10 EN
Date:	9.Dec ´15
Page :	15



3.4 X-Over Tab

Up to two X-Over filters with different characteristics can be applied for each output channel. The overview-sub-tab shows a summary for all output channels. Using the copy / paste functionality parameters of a specific channel can be quickly transferred to other channels and also to a different device.

DevManager DMOD2S-EQ_Nrl	
MAIN GAIN/DELAY IR FIR X-Over LIMITER PRESETS SETTINGS	X-Over parameters
0011 0012 0013 0014	
Mode 1: Mode 2: Opanic up with start st	X-Over previews
Mode 1: Mode 2: Openation of the second sec	Copy / paste settings
Mode 1: Mode 2: Opatimeter Opatimeter Copy BS_LP6 OFF -20 -20 -20 Paste Frequency 1: Frequency 2: -40 Frequency 1: 0 100 1000 100000000 Default	
Mode 1: Mode 2: 0 0 copy BS_HP6 OFF -20 -20 -20 Paste Frequency 1: Frequency 2: -60 Freq [Hz] Default 2505 31 10 100 1000 Default	

A detailed view for each channel is displayed by choosing the appropriate sub-tab.



Similar to previously mentioned output parameters these settings are only available in manufacturer mode they are also not group controlled.



3.5 LIMITER-Tab

Two limiters can be configured for each output. The first one can be configured as a long term RMS limiter and the second one as a short term peak limiter. The attack and release values are given in dB per second. This allows configuring both the attack time and the attack strength by a single parameter (the same for release).

Using the copy / paste functionality parameters of a specific channel can be quickly transferred to other channels and to different devices.



Each channel has a sub-tab detailing the settings.





Please carefully check mechanical and electrical power handling of your speaker drivers, as well as power handling of your amplifiers to align RMS and PEAK limiters.

Editor: Leonid Förster Version: 2.10 EN Date: 9.Dec ´15 Page : 17



3.6 Device-View PRESETS Tab

Here the preset library currently present on the device is displayed as a list view. Preset 1..8 can quickly be loaded by pressing the appropriate load button thus defining the currently active parametrization.





3.6.1 Managing several presets on one device

Once all parameters are tuned to their desired values the setting can be stored as a preset on the device. This functionality is provided in the MAIN Tab introduced in section 3.1:

ON	Devicename: DMOD2S-EQ Nr1 Mark: ((((•	Preset:	 Load
LINE	Active Preset: 0	Edit name:	Store

- 1. Select the destination slot from the preset drop-down menu on the right side.
- 2. Edit the name of the preset according to your preferences and press the store button.
- 3. This automatically specifies this preset slot as the currently active preset on the device. It will then be automatically reactivated after the device has been switched off.
 - a. The currently active preset slot and the preset name is displayed both on the left side of the MAIN-Tab and on the display of the device interface.
- 4. Choose a different preset from the drop-down menu and press load in order to switch to a different preset. It will be indicated as the active preset on the left and on the interface display.

3.6.2 Saving presets to a local file

The currently active device parameters can also be saved to a local file. This is done by a right click on the device name in the device list window or in the group list window.



Choosing the "Store to Preset" option from the pop-up menu opens the appropriate file dialogue. In order to retrieve device parameters from a local file the equivalent option "Load from Preset" has to be used. The loaded parameters overwrite the active parametrization data. In order to store them permanently on the device proceed as described above.



3.7 SETTINGS Tab



- In this tab general settings of a device can be modified.
- Two or more devices in the network can be interlinked by assigning them to the same UDP group. This functionality e.g. allows to automatically adopting the parameter changes on one device to all linked devices. E.g. the volume of the entire group can be changed simply by turning the rotary knob of one of the devices.
- In order to physically locate a device a signal with the specified duration can be send to it which then activates LED-indicators on the device interface.
- The backlight of the device display can be parametrized according to individual preferences.

3.7.1 Working with UDP-Groups

Once two or more devices are associated to one UDP-Group they mutually synchronize volume changes and preset changes from the device display:

- Changing the volume using the rotary knob of one device automatically sets the volume of all other devices to the same value.
- Changing the preset via the rotary knob on one device automatically updates all other devices to the same preset slot.
 - The preset names do not need to be the same.
 - If a preset slot is empty on one device it keeps the preceding preset slot active.
 - Note: Only the active slot is synchronized. This function does not change the preset parametrizations stored on each device.
- The synchronization does not work as long as devices are connected to the NetControl software. Disconnect all devices from NetControl in order to check the UDP-Group settings!

Editor:Leonid FörsterVersion:2.10 ENDate:9.Dec ´15Page :20



4 Working with Systems

A very useful feature of the NetControl software is the possibility to build up hierarchical groups. This provides smart controlling even in a complicated setup.

The complete system is visualized as a trees structure in the "group list" window. By selecting a group from the list it's parameters are shown in the "group manager" window. The controls for Gain/Delay and IIR have the same look and feel as the device controls described in section 3.





4.1 Working with groups

Several devices in the network can be grouped whereby the group hierarchy can have a depth of two levels. Two types of groups, with two and four channels respectively, can be chosen. For the DSP192-4-111 a 2CH group is recommended corresponding to its 2 input channels.

Right-click either on the "root"-group or on an existing group in order to get the pop-up menu which offers the options to add additional groups and devices. Use drag-and-drop to shift devices within the system tree.



Similarly, to add devices from the network just use the drag-and-drop functionality between the "device list" window and the "group list" window. The information about the group association is automatically stored in the device.

A double click on the group name or by choosing the "Edit"-option from the pop-up menu a dialogue is displayed showing general information. It e.g. allows specifying the group name.

📱 Edit Group	,		×
Edit Gro	up Name		
Enter nev	v group name		
<u>G</u> roup Na	ame Group_1p	12ch	
Group Ty	pe Group2Cł	4	
CAN	CEL	ОК	

When a group assignement is currently stored on the connected devices the system structure can be retrieved from the devices by clicking the tool bar icon .

Choose the "Remove group" from the pop-up menu in order to delete a group and all associated devices and subgroups from the current system. If a device is removed from the System, this information is automatically stored on the device.



4.1.1 Load / Store systems to a local file

To load or store the system setting to a local file click on the "Save system" icon Solar or on the "Load system" icon in the toolbar. Alternatively use the appropriate entries in the file menu. Attention! An existing system structure is cleared both in the NetControl tree and on all currently connected devices before a system file is loaded. System files do not store the complete parametrization of the devices. Apart from the system structure only the settings for the group input channels and settings for the currently active device input channels are stored. Information for output channel settings con only be stored in local preset files.

Up to 8 locally stored system files can be assigned to the corresponding "Snapshot" icons in the toolbar for quick access to these system files. This is very useful for locations with different setups. To assign a stored system to a snapshot icon use the menu command "System \rightarrow Edit System Shortcuts".

After a system file has been loaded it needs to be merged with the connected devices as described in section 4.1.2.

System Shortcuts		— X			
System Settin					
System Settin	gs				
Set filenames for	Set filenames for system snapshots				
Selecting syste	ms for snapshot				
LoadSystem1	C:\Users\LFoerster\Documents\ Daily Work\151117 - I	<u>O</u> pen			
LoadSystem2	C:\Users\LFoerster\Documents\ Daily Work\151117 - I	O <u>p</u> en			
LoadSystem3		Op <u>e</u> n			
LoadSystem4		Ope <u>n</u>			
LoadSystem5		Open			
LoadSystem6		Open			
LoadSystem7		Open			
LoadSystem8		Open			
Cattings					
setungs					
Enable Automatic System Update Close					



4.1.2 Virtual systems

A complete system structure can be build and parametrized with virtual devices. They are indicated by a gray dot in front of the device name. Once completed, the settings can be transferred to real devices in the network.

There are two ways to merge the system with real devices. In both cases the name of the real and the virtual devices must be identical. Of course the device types must be equal as well.

- 1. A real device can be manually merged with a virtual device by dragging it on the virtual device. The real device adopts the parametrization of the virtual device (The virtual device disappears from the system).
- 2. An automatic merging of the entire system is started by clicking the "Send config to network" icon in the toolbar. The parametrization is transferred from the virtual to the real devices when their names are equal.



5 Supplementary tools

5.1 The Meter-bridge view

Press the "Meter Bridge" icon in the toolbar to open the monitoring window with level meters for the in- and outputs of all connected devices.

I Monitoring	The other Designation of the	and a strength	a in cases limit marters	×
DMOD2S-EQ Nr1 IP INP: ANA T APS (((• PEAK AGC -9 -16 -16 -26 -26 -0 -16 -26 -0 -16 -26 -0 -16 -26 -0 -16 -26 -0 -16 -26 -0 -16 -26 -0 -16 -26 -0 -16 -26 -0 -16 -10 -10 -10 -10 -10 -10 -10 -10 -10 -10	DEVICE0 IP INP: ANA T APIS ((C) PEAK ABC -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9	DEVICE1 IP INP: ANA T APS ACC PEAK -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9 -9		

5.2 Auto renamer

In order to automatically make sure that all devices in the network have unique names the auto renamer tool can be used. Use the menu command "Tools \rightarrow Auto renamer".





5.3 User mode

The manufacturer type user can customize some NetControl functions. This dialogue is invoked by the menu command "Tools \rightarrow User mode".

📱 User Settings 📃 🗾				
User Setting	gs			
Receive from	Network	<u>N</u> etwork		
RCFN Mode	● <u>T</u> olerant ■ <u>P</u> edantic ■ <u>F</u> lexible	 A<u>u</u>tomatic reconnect Max Retries 		
Default Devic	ce name	Device Popup on " <u>S</u> toreDeviceParam"		
		GUI <u>E</u> nable Window Settings <u>A</u> nimated wait		

5.4 Manufacturer settings

The scope of the user mode is customized in the following dialogue displayed by the menu command "Admin \rightarrow Settings".

2 Manufacturer Settings				
Manufacturer Settings				
Library in UserMode Modify <u>Preset Library</u> Modify <u>Speaker Library</u> 	Debug Level			
System ■ <u>U</u> ser can edit settings	<u>C</u> leare firmware Cl <u>e</u> ar firmware on library udate			

Editor:Leonid FörsterVersion:2.10 ENDate:9.Dec ´15Page :26



© 2015, Thiel & Partner GmbH Rommerskirchenerstr. 21 De 50259 Pulheim Tel: +49 (0)2238/475475 Fax: +49 (0)2238/475476 Email: <u>info@accuton.de</u> Web: <u>www.accuton.de</u>

Copies, translations, alteration of any sort or conversions in electronic media or machine-readable forms are prohibited without previous, explicit approval by Thiel & Partner GmbH. All brand names are property of their respective owners. Thiel & Partner is not responsible for damages to software, hardware or data and any resulting losses which were caused by inappropriate manipulation or installation of the software. Technical specifications subject to change without notice.